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Responses to CAM Network Code – second formal consultation on new or modified concepts
Consultation Response Sheet

Please complete the fields below and send via email using the subject title, “Response to the CAM NC consultation” to info@entsog.eu by 14 November 2011. 

	Name

	First and Last Name:  Christiane Sykes


	Organisation

	Company/Organisation Name: Statoil ASA (STASA)

	Job Title: European Regulatory Affairs Adviser


	Contact details

	Email: csyk@statoil.com

	Tel:  +44 203 204 3673

	Mobile: +44 7824 310 961


	Address

	Street: 1 Kingdom Street

	Postal Code: W2 6BD

	City: London

	Country: UK


Countries in which your organisation operates: Austria, Belgium, Czech Republic, Denmark, France, Germany, Ireland, Italy, Netherlands, Norway, Spain, Turkey, UK.
How would you describe your organisation?

	
	Association (please specify type)

	
	End user

	x
	Network user

	
	Trader

	
	Other (please specify)


In the questions below, ENTSOG would be grateful if respondents could clearly indicate their preferred option and provide a brief but fully reasoned justification for their choice. This applies equally whether you agree or disagree with any ENTSOG proposal as it is important that ENTSOG is able to extract the clear views of all respondents. If you do not respond to a question, ENTOSG will assume that you have no view on this issue.
	Question 1 (Standard Capacity Products to be auctioned): which option do you prefer, and why?

	x
Option 1: Quarterly only
Option 2: Integration of yearly product (Post consultation proposal)


	Please justify your choice. ENTSOG would particularly welcome any views on why the alternatives to your preferred option may not be technically feasible. 
Removing the option to book long-term quarterly capacity and obliging users to book an annual yearly product instead, creates the risk that users will be forced to book more capacity than they need to ensure they can meet their peak requirements.   A quarterly product gives users the option to profile their capacity according to seasonal demand, which will in turn free up more capacity for the medium to short term market.
Quarterly products can be combined to form an annual product, where required, thus allowing different types of network users to compete on a level playing field.
STASA is concerned that some network users participating in the initial auction simulation workshop found the process to be overly complex, however, this was not result of a quarterly capacity product but rather owing to incremental capacity not be included in the process, which leaves the auction open to a degree of manipulation, as bidders may be perversely incentivised to bid for more capacity than they need, with a view to being pro-rated down to a level, which reflects their actual capacity requirements.  
The risk that those network users wishing to fulfil their annual supply contract requirements may be unable to book sufficient quarterly capacity to meet their annual capacity needs is equal to the risk of the user being unable to book an annual product.  This risk can be mitigated by placing an appropriate bid in the auction to ensure they secure the capacity they need.  
Furthermore, the proposal for an annual long-term yearly product increases uncertainty as, owing to the obligation on the TSO to reserve 10% of capacity for the short-term, there is unlikely to be any capacity remaining in the annual quarterly auction and users will have to wait until the rolling monthly auction to secure additional capacity.  The consequential loss of medium term capacity and flexibility would have a negative impact smaller players and/ or new market participants, where they may have been unable to secure capacity in the longer-term auction but are not in a position to be able to take the risk of waiting until month-ahead.


	Question 2 (Start date for yearly product): which option do you prefer, and why?

	Option 1: Yearly product starts on 1st January
x
Option 2: Yearly product starts on 1st October       


	Please justify your choice. ENTSOG would particularly welcome any views on why the alternatives to your preferred option may not be technically feasible. 

A further risk of an annual capacity product is that the start date would discriminate against different types of user, whereas purchasing a quarterly product can be aligned to meet the needs of the individual user, regardless of their type of contract.  A yearly product starting on 1st October would at least be best aligned with the gas year.


	Question 3 (Auction algorithms: overall methodology): which option do you prefer, and why?

	x
Option 1: Multiple round ascending clock auction            
Option 2: Single round volume based auction           


	Please justify your choice. ENTSOG would particularly welcome any views on why the alternatives to your preferred option may not be technically feasible. 

STASA supports the multiple round ascending clock model, which in our opinion best facilitates open and transparent price formation.
Single round auctions could be complex to manage as there could be several movements in price and quantities across IPs over the course of the open window.  If all parties dynamically change their positions in the period it may become difficult to monitor all the simultaneous movements and make coordinated decisions.
A single round auction may also serve to artificially push up prices, whereas with a multiple round auction, users will be in a better position to amend their bids according to demand by assessing the aggregated bids for capacity, published after each round.
The multiple round auction is more controlled, given that there are several price ladders within the auction and where there is no limitation on price steps.  Moving from larger to smaller price steps once demand is less than capacity offered would mitigate the risk of capacity falling by a large amount between price steps
The issue of matching capacities across locations or periods where an auction closes earlier will vary depending on whether this happens early or late in the auctioning process.  With an early closure in one auction, it is more likely that there is a budget left for the remaining auction(s) – resulting in a higher probability that the capacities can be matched across locations/periods.  With a late closure, it is more vital that capacities are reduced across locations/periods to stay within a total budget.  
A harmonised IT system to facilitate network users bidding at several interconnector points simultaneously will be crucial to facilitating the successful outcome of harmonised auctions at cross-border interconnection points within the EU.


	Question 4 (Limitation of price steps): which option do you prefer, and why?

	x
Option 1: Do not limit number of price steps (Post consultation proposal)
Option 2: Limit number of price steps


	Please justify your choice. ENTSOG would particularly welcome any views on why the alternatives to your preferred option may not be technically feasible. 

It is STASA’s view that the market should set the limit on the number of price steps.  As noted above, moving from larger to smaller price steps once demand is less than capacity offered would mitigate the risk of capacity falling by a large amount between price steps, as would offering a number of price steps within each auction round.  However, this could become overly complex and difficult to manage so establishing a methodology ex-ante would give users greater certainty, for example setting a funnel type based approach, where price step increments decrease at a pre-defined stage in the auction, enabling bidders to fine-tune their capacity bids.  We recognise this would require some further thought as to how such a model could be established.


	Question 5 (Minimisation of unsold capacity): which option do you prefer, and why?

	Option 1: Minimise unsold capacity (Post consultation proposal)
x
Option 2: Draft CAM NC proposal


	Please justify your choice. ENTSOG would particularly welcome any views on why the alternatives to your preferred option may not be technically feasible. 

Pro-rating can lead to distorted bidding behaviour as bidders may bid for more capacity than they need, with a view to being pro-rated to an amount which reflects their actual capacity needs.  Moreover, any capacity unsold in the long-term auction will be rolled forward to the next applicable auction, maintaining a degree of flexibility in the market.
The inclusion of incremental capacity would resolve many of the issues of price discovery.  STASA would welcome proposals for an incremental capacity regime to be established as soon as possible.


	Question 6 (Sunset clause: choice of default rule): which option do you prefer, and why?

	Option 1: Maximum default rule with cap at technical capacity
x
Option 2: "Partially unbundled“ default rule


	Please justify your choice. ENTSOG would particularly welcome any views on why the alternatives to your preferred option may not be technically feasible. 

The risk remains of which mechanisms would be employed to raise the available capacity at one side of a border to match the maximum capacity available at the other side and deciding who pays for the additional capacity, under the maximum rule.  STASA, therefore, prefers the partially unbundled default rule, should obligatory bundling be agreed at the comitology stage.  We note, however, that the legal implications of establishing any such rule are still to be fully understood and the risks to all capacity holders must be fully understood.


	Question 7 (Sunset clause: further questions): Please provide any views, information or evidence in relation to the further questions raised by ENTSOG in section F.2 regarding the sunset clause.

	


	Question 8 (Tariffs: split of auction premium from bundled products): which option do you prefer, and why?

	Option 1: Keep split of auction premium proportional to reserve prices as default (Post consultation proposal)
Option 2: Split of auction premium into equal shares as default


	Please justify your choice. ENTSOG would particularly welcome any views on why the alternatives to your preferred option may not be technically feasible. 
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